
 

Bindusagar Reddy Martha A. Flores Hans Kashyap Liberty Lomeli Areli Martinez 
Zone 1 Zone 2 Zone 3 Zone 4 Zone 5 

 

 

 
       

SIERRA VIEW LOCAL HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING  

465 West Putnam Avenue, Porterville, CA – Board Room 
 

AGENDA 
November 25, 2025 

    

OPEN SESSION (5:00 PM) 
 

The Board of Directors will call the meeting to order at 5:00 P.M. at which time the Board of 
Directors will undertake procedural items on the agenda. At 5:05 P.M. the Board will move to 
Closed Session regarding the items listed under Closed Session. The public meeting will 
reconvene in person at 5:30 P.M. In person attendance by the public during the open session(s) 
of this meeting is allowed in accordance with the Ralph M. Brown Act, Government Code 
Sections 54950 et seq.  
 
Call to Order  
 

I. Approval of Agendas 
Recommended Action: Approve/Disapprove the Agenda as Presented/Amended 
 
The Board Chairman may limit each presentation so that the matter may be concluded 
in the time allotted.  Upon request of any Board member to extend the time for a matter, 
either a Board vote will be taken as to whether to extend the time allotted or the chair 
may extend the time on his own motion without a vote.  

 
II. Adjourn Open Session and go into Closed Session 

 
CLOSED SESSION (5:01 PM) 

 
As provided in the Ralph M. Brown Act, Government Code Sections 54950 et seq., the Board of 
Directors may meet in closed session with members of the staff, district employees and its 
attorneys.  These sessions are not open to the public and may not be attended by members of 
the public.  The matters the Board will meet on in closed session are identified on the agenda or 
are those matters appropriately identified in open session as requiring immediate attention and 
arising after the posting of the agenda.  Any public reports of action taken in the closed session 
will be made in accordance with Gov. Code Section 54957.1 
 

III. Closed Session Business  
 

A. Pursuant to Evidence Code Sections 1156 and 1157.7; Health and Safety Code 
Section 32106(b): Chief of Staff Report. 
 

1. General Update; 
2. Report on Peer Review/Credentials  

 



 
 

  
 

SIERRA VIEW LOCAL HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING AGENDA  

November 25, 2025 
 

Page 2 
Bindusagar Reddy Martha A. Flores Hans Kashyap Liberty Lomeli Areli Martinez 

Zone 1 Zone 2 Zone 3 Zone 4 Zone 5 
 

B. Pursuant to Evidence Code Sections 1156 and 1157.7; Health and Safety Code 
Section 32106(b): Quality Division Update: 
 

1. Quality Division Report 
2. Compliance Report for Quarter 1  

 

C. Pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54962; Health and Safety Code Section 32106(c): 
Discussion Regarding Trade Secrets Pertaining to Services and Strategic Planning. 
Estimated date of disclosure December 1, 2026.   

 
D. Pursuant To Gov. Code Section 54956.9(D)(2), Conference With Legal Counsel About 

Recent Work Product (B)(1) And (B)(3)(F): Significant Exposure To Litigation; Privileged 
Communication (1 Items).  

 
To the extent items on the Closed Session Agenda are not completed prior to the scheduled 
time for the Open Session to begin, the items will be deferred to the conclusion of the Open 
Session Agenda. 
  

IV. Adjourn Closed Session and go into Open Session 
 

OPEN SESSION (5:30 PM)  
 

V. Closed Session Action Taken 
 

Pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54957.1; Action(s) to be taken Pursuant to Closed Session 
Discussion 
 

A. Chief of Staff Report: 
 

1. General Report 
 Recommended Action: Information only; no action taken  

 
2. Report on Peer Review/Credentials 

 Recommended Action: Approve/Disapprove Report on Peer Review and 
Credentials as Given 

 
B. Quality Division Update  
 Recommended Action: Approve/Disapprove Report as Given 
 

1. Quality Division Report 
Recommended Action: Approve/Disapprove Quality Division Report as Given 



 
 

  
 

SIERRA VIEW LOCAL HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING AGENDA  

November 25, 2025 
 

Page 3 
Bindusagar Reddy Martha A. Flores Hans Kashyap Liberty Lomeli Areli Martinez 

Zone 1 Zone 2 Zone 3 Zone 4 Zone 5 
 

 
2. Compliance Quarter 1 Report 

 Recommended Action: Approve/Disapprove Report as Given 
 
C. Discussion Regarding Trade Secrets Pertaining to Services and General Strategic 

Planning 
 Recommended Action: Information Only; No Action Taken  
 
D. Conference with Legal Counsel  
 Recommended Action: Information Only; No Action Taken 
 

II. Public Comments 
 

Pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54954.3 - NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC - At this time, members of 
the public may comment on any item not appearing on the agenda.  Under state law, 
matters presented under this item cannot be discussed or acted upon by the Board at 
this time.  For items appearing on the agenda, the public may make comments at this 
time or present such comments when the item is called.  This is the time for the public to 
make a request to move any item on the consent agenda to the regular agenda. Any 
person addressing the Board will be limited to a maximum of three (3) minutes so that all 
interested parties have an opportunity to speak with a total of thirty (30) minutes allotted 
for the Public Comment period.  Please state your name and address for the record prior 
to making your comment. Written comments submitted to the Board prior to the Meeting 
will distributed to the Board at this time, but will not be read by the Board secretary during 
the public comment period. 

 
III. Consent Agenda 

Recommended Action: Approve/Disapprove Consent Agenda as presented  
 
Background information has been provided to the Board on all matters listed under the 
Consent Agenda, covering Medical Staff and Hospital policies, and these items are 
considered to be routine by the Board.  All items under the Consent Agenda covering 
Medical Staff and Hospital policies are normally approved by one motion.    If discussion is 
requested by any Board member(s) or any member of the public on any item addressed 
during public comment, then that item may be removed from the Consent Agenda and 
moved to the Business Agenda for separate action by the Board.            
 

IV. Approval of Minutes 
 

A. October 28, 2025, Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 



 
 

  
 

SIERRA VIEW LOCAL HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING AGENDA  

November 25, 2025 
 

Page 4 
Bindusagar Reddy Martha A. Flores Hans Kashyap Liberty Lomeli Areli Martinez 

Zone 1 Zone 2 Zone 3 Zone 4 Zone 5 
 

Recommended Action: Approve/Disapprove October 28, 2025, Minutes of the 
Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 

  
V. Business Items 

 
A. October 2025 Financials  

Recommended Action: Approve/Disapprove October Financial Report as 
Presented 
 

B. Annual Nursing Report 
Recommended Action: Approve/Disapprove Annual Nursing Report 

 
VI. SVLHCD Board Chair Report 

 
VII. SVMC CEO Report 

 
VIII. Announcements:  

  
Regular Board of Directors Meeting – December 16, 2025, at 5:00 p.m.     

 
IX. Adjournment  

 
 

PUBLIC NOTICE 
 

Any person with a disability may request the agenda be made available in an appropriate alternative format.   
A request for a disability-related modification or accommodation may be made by a person with a disability who 
requires a modification or accommodation in order to participate in the public meeting to Melissa Crippen, VP of 
Quality and Regulatory Affairs, Sierra View Medical Center, at (559) 788-6047, Monday – Friday between 8:00 a.m. – 
4:30 p.m.  Such request must be made at least 48 hours prior to the meeting. 

 
PUBLIC NOTICE ABOUT COPIES 

 
Materials related to an item on this agenda submitted to the Board after distribution of the agenda packet, as well as 
the agenda packet itself, are available for public inspection/copying during normal business hours at the 
Administration Office of Sierra View Medical Center, 465 W. Putnam Ave., Porterville, CA 93257.  Privileged and 
confidential closed session materials are/will be excluded until the Board votes to disclose said materials.   
 

 



 
     

APPROVED BY SENIOR LEADERSHIP TEAM
HOSPITAL POLICIES AND REPORTS FOR REVIEW 

AGENDA
CONSENT



 Environment of Care Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

CODE ORANGE - INTERNAL HAZARDOUS 

MATERIALS SPILL 

SECTION:   

Hazardous Materials & Waste Mgt 

Page 1 of 3 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

 

PURPOSE: 

 

To ensure that departmental personnel are prepared to properly respond to hazardous materials 

(HAZMAT) incidents in a safe manner that occurs within the buildings or on the grounds of District 

properties. 

 

POLICY: 

 

In all HAZMAT situations, the primary responsibility of all personnel is to keep themselves, patients, and 

visitors safe from further exposure/contamination.   

 

A list of all hazardous materials will be available through the Safety Data Sheet (SDS) Online data base. 

It is the responsibility of the Director of Environmental Services to update and maintain the SDS data 

base which is available online in the hospital intranet. 

 

Department personnel will receive initial and annual orientation regarding the use of the SDS data base, 

evacuation procedures and alerting the identified Emergency Response Personnel. 

 

AFFECTED PERSONNEL/AREAS: GOVERNING BOARD, MEDICAL STAFF, ALL HOSPITAL 

EMPLOYEES, VOLUNTEERS, VENDORS 

 

EQUIPMENT: 

 

“Spill Kit Cart" containing the following items will be readily available in Engineering Department: 

 

Absorbents Isolation Gowns 

Nitrile Gloves Wet-Vac 

Plastic Bags and Containers Goggles 

Surgical Masks Head Covers 

Impervious Shoe Covers  

  

Note: The “Spill Kit Cart” will be checked every 6 months by the Engineering Department to ensure that 

all required materials are present and in usable condition. 

 

In the care of a spill, the SDS for that item will be quickly obtained by personnel from the affected 

department and/or Engineering. 

 

Point of use spill kits have been placed throughout the facility in identified locations to perform minor 

HAZMAT spill containment and clean up. Extreme caution should be used in all HAZMAT spills to 

protect all persons from hazardous material exposure. 

 

PROCEDURE: 

 

MAJOR SPILL – HANDLING OF 

 

A major spill is defined when any of the following conditions are present: 



 Environment of Care Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

CODE ORANGE - INTERNAL HAZARDOUS 

MATERIALS SPILL 

SECTION:   

Hazardous Materials & Waste Mgt 

Page 2 of 3 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

 

 

• The condition required the immediate evacuation of all personnel from the affected area or building; 

• The spill involves quantities greater than 2.0 liters of material; 

• The contents of the spilled material is unknown; 

• The spilled material is highly toxic, bio-hazardous, radioactive or flammable. 

 

When a major hazardous material spill occurs, the following “Code Orange” process must be followed: 

 

1. Immediately evacuate all individuals from the affected area and close all doors. 

 

2. Contact the Hospital Operator by dialing “55” and make notification of the “Code Orange” and 

the specific location of the spill (e.g. “Code Orange to the Lab”). 

 

3. The operator will announce the “Code Orange” by overhead page and via two-way radio. 

 

4. Security, EVS and Engineering will respond to the location of the spill to evaluate the extent of 

the spill and to attempt to identify the material. 

 

5. Personnel initiating the “Code Orange” shall stand by the area of the spill at a safe distance to 

direct the Responders to the affected area.  Advise Responders of the quantity and any special 

hazards, e.g. flammability, corrosiveness or toxic fumes, including the type of material, if known. 

 

6. Upon initial evaluation of the spill, a determination will be made if emergency services (local Fire 

Department) response will be necessary to assist with the spill containment and cleanup. The 

House Supervisor, Administrator on Call or the Safety Officer will have the authority to make the 

“911” notification and inform emergency services of the HAZMAT incident.  For significant 

releases or threatened releases of hazardous materials, the following notifications must also be 

made.  The County of Tulare Department of Health and Human Services Environmental 

Health & Safety at 1-559-733-6441 and the Governor’s Office of Emergency Services at 1-

800-852-7550.     

 

7. The responders and/or Emergency Services will attempt to identify the material if not known and 

proceed to contain and clean up the hazardous material by use of SDS and/or manufacturer’s 

recommendations only after it is determined safe to do so. All hazardous material shall be placed 

in a safe, sealed container for proper disposal. Do not use respiratory protective equipment unless 

you are trained in its safe use. 

 

8. The affected area may be re-entered by department staff only after the spill has been eliminated 

and the “All-Clear” has been announced by overhead page from the House Supervisor, 

Administrator on Call, Safety Officer or Emergency Responders. 

 

MINOR SPILLS – HANDLING OF 

 

A minor spill involves hazardous materials that do not meet the criteria listed under Major Spill shown 

above. A minor spill can be easily cleaned up by department personnel without the assistance of 



 Environment of Care Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

CODE ORANGE - INTERNAL HAZARDOUS 

MATERIALS SPILL 

SECTION:   

Hazardous Materials & Waste Mgt 

Page 3 of 3 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

 

HAZMAT responders by use of a point of use spill kit. A relatively small area is involved, thereby only a 

relatively small number of personnel may need to evacuate the area until the spill is cleaned up. 

 

1. Obtain point of use Spill Kit and don PPE provided in the spill kit. Put absorbent from the Spill 

Kit on the material if the material spilled is in liquid form (and if this can be safely 

accomplished). Place the absorbed material and all exposed tools including used PPE in the spill 

kit container and seal with the lid provided. 

 

2. Call the Engineering Department for needed assistance and to remove the absorbed material for 

safe storage and proper disposal. 

 

3. Environmental Services staff will be contacted to perform additional cleanup to the area if 

needed. 

 

4. Additional information or assistance on minor spill cleanup may be obtained from the Safety 

Officer or the Director of Environmental Services. 

 

5. After all clean up and removal of hazardous materials has been accomplished, the area may return 

to normal operations. 

 

REFERENCES: 

 

• Safety Data Sheet (SDS) – SDS Online 

 

• The Joint Commission (2025).  Hospital accreditation standards. EC.02.02.01 Joint Commission 

Resources. Oak Brook, IL.  

 

 



 Human Resources Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

DEMOTION OF POSITION TO NEW POSITION 

SECTION:   

Human Resources 

Page 1 of 1 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

 

POLICY: 

 

Sierra View Medical Center (SVMC) may at times need to reassign an employee to a position with lesser 

responsibilities, authority and overall impact on the organization as measured by their performance or 

business needs of the hospital.  The employee's compensation will be adjusted to reflect work being 

performed if demoted to another position. 

 

AFFECTED PERSONNEL/AREAS: ALL EMPLOYEES 

 

PROCEDURE: 

 

Demotion means the reassignment of an employee from their current position to a new position with 

lesser duties, responsibilities, and authority.  The employee will then move to a position with a lower pay 

grade assignment whether the personnel action is for performance or non-performance reasons related to 

the business needs of the hospital. 

 

Compensation will be reduced by the amount necessary to maintain the same relationship to the minimum 

of the new salary range. 

 

If the employee returns to his or her previous job assignment, the salary should not be reduced to an 

amount lower than the employee's original salary in that job. 

 

The annual review date changes upon demotion.  The new review date will be the effective date of the 

demotion.  The employee’s performance in the new position will be reviewed at ninety (90) days and then 

again at his or her next new annual review date. 

 

Downgrade means the assignment of an employee to a lower pay grade based on reduced responsibilities 

or the restructuring of job duties in lieu of a new position. 

 

The employee's salary shall be reviewed with the Human Resources department to set the appropriate 

salary in the new pay range.   

 

REFERENCES: 

 

• Equal Employment Opportunity Commission. Usa.gov (n.d.). Retrieved from 

https://www.usa.gov/federalagencies/equal-employment.  

 

• DFEH | Department of Fair Employment & Housing (n.d.). Retrieved from https://www.dfeh.ca.gov. 

 

CROSS REFERENCES: 

 

• SALARY GRADES AND RANGES  

• PERFORMANCE ACCOUNTABILITY AND COMMITMENT  

 

 

https://powerdms.com/link/sierraview/document/?id=1578519
https://powerdms.com/link/sierraview/document/?id=1578497
https://powerdms.com/link/sierraview/document/?id=1578497


 Human Resources Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

JOB POSTING 

SECTION:   

 

Page 1 of 2 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

 

PURPOSE: 

 

To provide a consistent and equal employment opportunities  process for employees applying for  

advancement and career opportunities within Sierra View Medical Center (SVMC). 

 

POLICY: 

 

SVMC supports the retention strategy of growing employees and allowing them to gain career growth 

opportunities while being employed.  The job posting system provides employees with a process to apply 

for advancement and career opportunities which also supports the practice of promotions from within and 

ensures employees of equal opportunity practices.  

 

AFFECTED AREAS/PERSONNEL:   ALL EMPLOYEES 

 

PROCEDURE: 

 

Current qualified employees will be considered for posted positions before external candidates are 

actively recruited. 

 

Department Directors Leadership are responsible for assessing staffing levels following each vacancy and 

determining if the job description should be modified based on business and departmental needs.  If the 

position should be posted, a  request for a job posting is initiated with an approved electronic Position 

Control Request. 

 

Generally, all job openings are posted internally except where departmental staffing realignment and 

consolidation may otherwise intervene. 

 

Job postings can be viewed online at jobs.sierra-view.com. https://www.sierra-view.com/careers/ 

 

Open positions are posted for a minimum of five days. Current employees should apply for posted 

positions using their UKG portal by clicking “My Company” and the selecting “View Opportunities” on-

line using the “Current Employees” link found on SVMC’s website. Employees on a Leave of Absence 

and unable to apply with their UKG employee portal must apply using the external website and need to 

notify the HR Recruiter of their external application. 

 

To be eligible to transfer: 

 

a. The employee should have been employed in his or her position for at least 6 months.  

 

b. Employees who have been issued corrective actions at the documented written warning level 

within six months of the date of an interview are required to share the content and expectations 

with the hiring manager prior to receiving a job offer.  This information may be a deciding factor 

in the hiring decision.  Failure to disclose any corrective action prior to accepting an offer of 

transfer may also result in additional discipline, up to and including denial of the transfer and/or 

the termination of employment. 

 



 Human Resources Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

JOB POSTING 

SECTION:   

 

Page 2 of 2 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

 

c. Employees with a final written warning are not eligible to apply for a transfer within six months 

of the date of issue of the final written warning. However, employees who are on a Final Written 

NOCA may apply for a posted position only if the position is the same as their current role, 

within the same department, and is only a status change. The position must be open and within 

the department’s approved staffing budget. Eligibility to apply does not guarantee selection or 

approval for the transfer; selection is subject to the department’s standard hiring process.   

 

d. Prior to interview, the hiring Director/MangerLeadership is encouraged to review the candidate’s 

employee file and to have informal discussion with the candidates current 

Director/ManagerLeadership regarding the candidate’s performance, skills, and abilities relevant 

to the position for which they are applying. 

 

Human Resources will receive and forward application information for eligible employees to the hiring 

Unit/Department Director Leadership for their consideration and action.  As a courtesy, the employee’s 

current Director will be informed that the employee has submitted a transfer request for consideration.  

The employee is given first opportunity to disclose their interest in the position.  Otherwise, Human 

Resources will notify them during the recruitment process.  

 

As a professional courtesy, Employees are encouraged to discuss a potential transfer with their current 

supervisor. If an offer is accepted by an employee, HR will notify the employee’s supervisor that the 

employee has accepted another offer. HR in collaboration with the current supervisor will determine an 

appropriate timeline for the transfer to occur and 2-3 weeks is customary.  

 

For key positions on a case-by-case basis, HR will notify a current supervisor if the employee has 

requested to transfer to another position and has applied via the SVMC job board.  

 

Locum, travelers, agency and temporary staff may apply and be hired to help fill the vacancy during the 

open posting period.  

 

REFERENCES: 

 

• The Joint Commission (2018).  Hospital accreditation standards.  Joint Commission Resources. Oak 

Brook, IL. 

 

CROSS REFERENCES: 

 

• STAFF RECRUITMENT, EMPLOYMENT, AND RETENTION  

 

• PERFORMANCE ACCOUNTABILITY AND COMMITMENT 

 

  

 

 

https://powerdms.com/link/sierraview/document/?id=1578478
https://powerdms.com/link/sierraview/document/?id=1578478
https://powerdms.com/link/sierraview/document/?id=1578497
https://powerdms.com/link/sierraview/document/?id=1578497


 Environment of Care Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

WORKPLACE VIOLENCE PREVENTION PLAN 

SECTION:   

Security Management 

Page 1 of 15 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

 

PURPOSE: 

 

Violence is occurring all throughout the world and over time has filtered into the workplace. Overall, 

violent assaults remain fairly rare, although healthcare workers may be at higher risk for attacks compared 

to other professions. With this in mind, Sierra View Medical Center (SVMC) is committed to providing a 

work environment that is safe, and every effort is made to reduce or eliminate threats or acts of workplace 

violence.  

 

In late 2016, the Cal/OSHA Standards Board adopted SB 1299, a new health care workplace violence 

prevention regulation. The first phase of the regulation went into effect on April 1, 2017 related to 

reporting requirements and recordkeeping, followed by the final phase that became fully effective April 1, 

2018. The Workplace Violence Prevention Plan, assessments of the workplace, hazards identified, 

corrective measures put into place, and staff training was implemented by the 2018 due date. 

 

The Workplace Violence Prevention Plan (WVPP) is part of the organization’s Injury and Illness 

Prevention Plan (IIPP). The WVPP is in effect at all times in every unit (including Outpatient areas), 

services and operations. 

 

Key Elements of the WVPP include: 

 

1. Identifying management positions with the responsibility for administering the WVPP 

 

2. Coordination with other employers of employees (contractors, registries, vendors) regularly 

working at SVMC 

 

3. Identifying and evaluating safety and security risks 

 

4. Investigating acts of violence/violent incidents 

 

5. Hazards corrections/mitigations 

 

6. Communication plan with employees and others 

 

7. Designing, coordinating and implementing the training 

 

8. Incident reporting by employees, contracted labor, registries, and regularly on-site vendors 

 

9. Incident reporting to Cal/OSHA, Law Enforcement and the California Department of Public 

Health (CDPH) 

 

10. Recordkeeping/Incident Log 

 

11. Annual Program Review 

 

 

 



 Environment of Care Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

WORKPLACE VIOLENCE PREVENTION PLAN 

SECTION:   

Security Management 

Page 2 of 15 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

 

 

A.  DEFINITIONS:  

 

1. Workplace Violence:  Any act of violence, threat of violence or aggressive behavior that 

occurs in the work setting. The term workplace violence shall not include lawful acts of 

self-defense or defense of others. Workplace violence includes the following: 

 

a. The threat or use of physical force against an employee that results in, or has a 

high likelihood of resulting in, injury, psychological trauma, or stress, regardless 

of whether the employee sustains an injury; 

 

b. An incident involving the threat or use of a firearm or other dangerous weapon, 

including the use of common objects as weapons, regardless of whether the 

employee sustains an injury; 

 

c. Examples of violent acts may include, but are not limited to, assault, battery, 

beatings, stabbings, shooting, rape, psychological traumas, threatening or 

obscene phone calls, stalking, being sworn or shouted at, intimidation, or 

harassment of any kind 

 

d. Threat of violence means a statement or conduct that causes a person to fear for 

his or her safety because there is a reasonable possibility the person might be 

physically injured, and that serves no legitimate purpose. 

 

2. Four workplace violence types: 

 

a. “Type 1 violence” means workplace violence committed by a person who has no 

legitimate business in the worksite, and includes violent acts by anyone who 

enters the workplace with the intent to commit a crime 

 

b. “Type 2 violence” means workplace violence directed at employees by 

customers, clients, patients, students, inmates, or any other for whom an 

organization provides services 

 

c. “Type 3 violence” means workplace violence against an employee by a present 

or former employee, supervisor, or manager 

 

d. “Type 4 violence” means workplace violence committed in the workplace by 

someone who does not work there, but has, or is known to have had, a personal 

relationship with an employee 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 Environment of Care Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

WORKPLACE VIOLENCE PREVENTION PLAN 

SECTION:   

Security Management 

Page 3 of 15 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

 

3. Risk Factors: 

 

a. Environmental risk factors in the facility or area in which health care services or 

operations are conducted may contribute to the likelihood or severity of a 

Workplace Violence incident. Environmental risk factors include risk factors 

associated with the specific task being performed. 

 

b. Patient specific risk factors are specific to a patient that may increase the 

likelihood or severity of a Workplace Violence incident, such as the use of drugs 

or alcohol, psychiatric condition or diagnosis associated with increased violence, 

and condition or disease process that would cause confusion and/or 

disorientation, or history of violence. 

 

4. Work Practice Controls: Procedures, rules and staffing that are used to effectively reduce 

Workplace Violence hazards. Work practice controls include, as applicable, but are not 

limited to: 

 

a. Appropriate staffing levels. 

 

b. Provisions of dedicated safety personnel (e.g., Security Officers). 

 

c. Employee training on Workplace Violence prevention methods. 

 

d. Employee training on procedures to follow in the event of a Workplace Violence 

incident. 

 

 

 

 

 

POLICY: 

 

B. RESPONSIBILITIES 

1. The Safety Officer is responsible to initiate, implement, maintain and administer the 

WVPP. The Safety Officer may delegate duties, tasks and assignments via the 

Environmental Safety Committee. 

 
2. The Director of Quality & Patient Safety or designee is responsible to initiate, implement, 

maintain and administer the IIPP. 

 

3. Each Department Director/Manager/Supervisor and Employers (On-site 

Contractors/Vendors) of other employees is responsible for implementing, complying and 

supporting the WVPP. 

 

4. Each employee and other employees (contractors/vendors) are responsible for 



 Environment of Care Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

WORKPLACE VIOLENCE PREVENTION PLAN 

SECTION:   

Security Management 

Page 4 of 15 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

 

implementing, complying and supporting the WVPP. 

 

C. PLAN DEVELOPMENT 

 

1. WVPP development requires a multidisciplinary team approach, which includes 

Leadership and Management, along with employees and their representatives in 

developing, implementing, and reviewing the plan. 

 

2. The development, implementation, and annual review of the plan will be coordinated 

through the Environmental Safety Committee in conjunction with active involvement of 

employees and their representatives. 

 

D. COMMUNICATION 

 

WVPP information and updates are communicated through the following means: 

 

1. Annual WVPP evaluation and review 

 

2. Annual training (type of training is dependent on the roles, departments and specific risks 

associated with the job duties or environment) 

 

3. Department Specific Training (example: CPI Non-Violent Crisis Intervention) 

 

4. E-Learning self-learning module 

 

5. Department Staff Meetings 

 

6. SVMC will document and communicate to other employees, employers and between shift 

and units, information that may increase the potential for Workplace Violence incidents. 

 

Employees are encouraged to report safety concerns to the Safety Officer, Security, Risk Management, 

Employee Health and their Director, Manager or Supervisor. 

Attempts will be made throughout the year to solicit active participation of employees and their 

representatives in the review, creation, design and implementation of the WVPP and all training 

materials and sessions. The following methods will be used to solicit active participation: 

 

1. E-Learning modules 

 

2. Training session debriefings 

 

3. Staff meetings 

 

E. TRAINING 

 
All employees working in the facility, units, service lines, or operations shall be provided initial 



 Environment of Care Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

WORKPLACE VIOLENCE PREVENTION PLAN 

SECTION:   

Security Management 

Page 5 of 15 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

 

training, that includes an online module in E-Learning which covers the types of Workplace 

Violence, personal safety and reporting, followed by annual refresher training on the WVPP. 

 

Initial employee training will address the workplace violence risks that the employees are 

reasonably anticipated to encounter in their jobs, the workplace violence hazards identified in the 

facility, unit, service or operation, and the corrective measures SVMC has implemented. The 

initial training was provided when the Workplace Violence Prevention Plan was first established 

and when an employee is newly hired, assigned to perform duties for which required training was 

not previously required, and new or reassigned employees.  

 

Initial training includes: 

 

1. An explanation of the Workplace Violence Prevention Plan, including the hazard identification 

and evaluation procedures, general and personal safety measures implemented, how the employee 

may communicate concerns about workplace violence without fear of reprisal, how workplace 

violence incidents will be addressed, and how employees can participate in reviewing and 

revising the plan.  

 

2. How to recognize potential violence, factors contributing to the escalation of violence and how 

to counteract them, and when and how to seek assistance to prevent or respond to violence.  

 

3. Strategies to avoid physical harm. 

 

4. How to recognize alerts, alarms, or other warnings about emergency conditions and how to use 

identified escape routes or locations for shelters, as applicable. 

 

5. The role of private security personnel, if any. 

 

6. How to report violent incidents to law enforcement.  

 

7. Resources available to employees for coping with incidents of violence, including but not 

limited to, critical incident stress debriefing or employee assistance program. 

 

8. An opportunity for interactive questions and answers with a person on knowledge about the Workplace 

Violence Prevention Plan.   

In addition to District employees, WVPP training is required for: 

 

o Contracted/Contingent Workforce 

 

o On-Site Contractors that conduct regular business on SVMC property (i.e., On-Site 

Security, Renovo) 

 

o Licensed Independent Professionals not employed by the District and volunteers are not 

required to be trained by Cal/OSHA, but are highly encouraged to be familiar with the 

WVPP 

 



 Environment of Care Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

WORKPLACE VIOLENCE PREVENTION PLAN 

SECTION:   

Security Management 

Page 6 of 15 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

 

The level of training on WVPP depends on the workplace or job position risk level: 

 

o Low risk: E-Learning self-learning module  

 

o High risk: Non-violent crisis intervention training 

 

Employees performing patient care contact activities in higher-risk areas (example: Emergency 

Department), and those employees’ supervisors are required to attend annual formal Non-Violent 

Crisis Intervention training. Non-Violent Crisis Intervention training (CPI) is a focused training 

on de-escalation techniques as well as restrictive and non-restrictive interventions. The training 

reviews the topics included in the initial training and the results of the annual Workplace 

Violence Prevention Plan review and/or any review conducted due to new procedures or new 

information. 

 

Employees assigned to respond to alarms or other notifications of violent incidents or whose 

assignments involve confronting or controlling persons exhibiting aggressive or violent behavior 

(i.e., Security Officers) shall be provided training prior to initial assignment and at least annually 

thereafter that will include.  

 

1. General and personal safety measures. 

 

2. Aggression and violence predicting factors. 

 

3. The assault cycle. 

 

4. Characteristics of aggressive and violent patients and victims. 

 

5. Verbal interventions and de-escalation techniques and physical maneuvers to defuse and 

prevent violent behavior. 

 

6. Strategies to prevent physical harm. 

 

7. Appropriate and inappropriate use of restraining techniques in accordance with Title 22. 

 

8. Appropriate and inappropriate use of medication as chemical restraints in accordance with Title 

22. 

 

9. An opportunity to practice the maneuvers and techniques included in the training with other 

employees, including a meeting to debrief the practice session. Problems found are corrected. 

 

 

SVMC provides additional training when new equipment, work practices or hazards are 

introduced, or when a new, or previously unrecognized, workplace violence hazard has been 

identified. 

 

 



 Environment of Care Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

WORKPLACE VIOLENCE PREVENTION PLAN 

SECTION:   

Security Management 

Page 7 of 15 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

 

F. RISK ASSESSMENTS 

 
1. A risk assessment is required for all departments, units, service lines, (including 

outpatient areas), and services that include: 

 

o Environmental risk factors; 

 

o Community-based risk factors; 

 

o Operation area surrounding the facility such as employee parking areas and other 

outdoor surroundings; 

 

2. Include a review of workplace violence incidents that have occurred in each facility, 

department, unit, operations, (including outpatient areas), and services within the 

previous year, whether or not an injury occurred; 

 

3. Risk assessments will be conducted annually or whenever conditions change that could 

affect safety; 

 

4. The risk assessment shall be used to identify locations and situations where violent 

incidents are more likely to occur; 

 

5. Active engagement of employees and their representatives. 

 

 

Patient-Specific Risk Factors: 

 

Create procedures to identify and evaluate factors specific to patients that may increase 

the likelihood or severity of violence or the threat of violence (e.g. alcohol, psychiatric 

condition or diagnosis associated with increased risk of violence, any condition or disease 

process that would cause confusion and/or disorientation, or history of violence.  

 

1. Procedures for paramedics/emergency medical services to communicate with receiving 

facility to identify risk factors associated with patients being transported to the receiving 

facility  

 

2. Procedures for receiving facilities to communicate with law enforcement and 

paramedics/emergency medical services to identify risk factors associated with patients 

being transported to the receiving facility. 

 

Risk factors must include, but not limited to: 

 

1. Patient's mental status and condition that may cause the patient to be non-responsive to 

instruction or to behave unpredictably, disruptively, uncooperatively, or aggressively; 

 



 Environment of Care Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

WORKPLACE VIOLENCE PREVENTION PLAN 

SECTION:   

Security Management 

Page 8 of 15 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

 

2. A patient's treatment and medication status, type, and dosage, as is known to the health 

facility and employees; 

 

3. A patient's history of violence; 

 

4. Any disruptive or threatening behavior displayed by the patient.  

 

Visitors or Other Persons Who Are Not Employees 

 

Create procedures to assess visitors or other persons who are not employees who display 

disruptive behavior or otherwise demonstrate a risk of committing workplace violence.  

 

1. Policies outlining the circumstances under which a person will not be permitted to 

enter or remain in the facility. Hospital should train staff on what to do if such a person 

comes into the facility or becomes angry when asked to leave.  

 

2. Develop criteria for discontinuing the flagging of a visitor for risk of violence potential 

if the risk is due to a temporary situation.  

 

3. Develop process to credential and manage vendors. 

 

4. Develop a plan to communicate the violence potential of a visitor to staff.  

 

 

G. HAZARD CORRECTION 

 
1. Engineering and work practice controls shall be used to eliminate or minimize employee 

exposure to the identified hazards to the extent feasible. 

 

2. SVMC shall take measures to protect employees from imminent hazards immediately, 

and shall take measures to protect employees from identified serious hazards within 

seven business days of the discovery of the hazard. 

 

3. When an identified corrective measure cannot be implemented within the seven business 

day timeframe, such as a project that requires OSHPD approval, SVMC shall take interim 

measures to abate the imminent or serious nature of the hazard while completing the 

permanent control measures. 

 

4. Active engagement of employees and their representatives will be included in the hazard 

corrective measures whenever feasible. Employees will be informed of the results and 

corrective actions taken. 

 

5. Examples of Hazard Corrections include, but are not limited to, the following: 

 

a. Emergency Department: 

 



 Environment of Care Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

WORKPLACE VIOLENCE PREVENTION PLAN 

SECTION:   

Security Management 

Page 9 of 15 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

 

a. Electronic access control 

b. Closed Circuit Television (CCTV) cameras 

c. Security Officer Station – Posted 24 hours per day 

 

b. Maternal Child Health Unit: 

 

a. Electronic access control 

b. Access Control System 

c. CCTV 

d. Department policy in place for identifying visitors 

e. Department procedure for uniquely identifying mother-infants 

f. Security Officer Station – Posted 24 hours per day 

 

c. Pharmacy Department: 

 

a. Electronic access control 

b. CCTV 

 

d. Human Resources department: 

 

a. Access Control System 

b. CCTV 

 

AFFECTED PERSONNEL/AREAS: GOVERNING BOARD; MEDICAL STAFF; ALL HOSPITAL 

EMPLOYEES; VOLUNTEERS; VENDORS 

 

PROCEDURE: 

 

H. VIOLENT INCIDENT REPORTING (Internal and External to Cal/OSHA) 

 
A.  Internal reporting of workplace violence incidents may be accomplished by several 

means: 

 

1. During normal business hours Monday – Friday, employees may contact 

Employee Health Services (EHS) by dialing ext. 6174 or visiting the EHS office. 

They may also contact the Environment of Care/Safety and Security Manager at 

ext. 6008. 

 

2. After hours and weekends, incidents may be reported by using the electronic 

Incident Reporting System. 

 

3. For serious incidents, such as a death or injury requiring hospitalization, the 

employees’ supervisor, manager or director shall be contacted and that individual 

will immediately contact the administrator on-call and the Environment of 

Care/Safety and Security Manager or Safety Officer. 

 



 Environment of Care Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

WORKPLACE VIOLENCE PREVENTION PLAN 

SECTION:   

Security Management 

Page 10 of 15 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

 

4. External reporting of workplace violence incidents to Cal/OSHA shall be 

completed for incidents involving any of the following: 

 

• The use of physical force against a hospital employee by a patient or a 

person accompanying a patient that results in, or has a high likelihood of 

resulting in, injury, psychological trauma, or stress, regardless of whether 

the employee sustains an injury. 

 

• An incident involving the use of a firearm or other dangerous weapon, 

regardless of whether the employee sustains an injury. 

 

• An incident involving the death of an employee, hospitalization greater 

than 24 hours, one or more days away from work (which includes the 

day of the incident), restricted work or transfer to another job, medical 

treatment beyond “First Aid”, loss of consciousness, significant injury, or 

psychological trauma or stress as a result of the workplace violence 

incident. 

 

5. Timeframes for reporting to Cal/OSHA:   

 

1) Shall be reported online to Cal/OSHA within 24 hours if the incident 

involves: 

 

a. A fatality or an injury that requires inpatient hospitalization for a 

period in excess of 24 hours.  

b. Any incidents involving a firearm, dangerous weapon, loss of 

limb, or serious degree of permanent disfigurement. 

c. An urgent or emergent threat to the welfare, health, or safety of 

hospital personnel (potential exposure to death or serious 

physical harm) 

 

2) Shall be reported online to Cal/OSHA within 72 hours if the incident 

involves: 

 

a. All other incidents not listed above in section 3.a. b. c. 

 

b. The hospital shall submit an initial report with all information 

available within the allotted timeframe. There are no obligations 

by Cal/OSHA for the hospital to update the report online if 

additional information is made available at a later date. 

 

3) Reports to Law Enforcement  

 

a. Within 72 hours of an incident, the employer must report acts of 

assault or battery against on-duty hospital personnel to the local 

law enforcement agency if the incident results in injury or 



 Environment of Care Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

WORKPLACE VIOLENCE PREVENTION PLAN 

SECTION:   

Security Management 

Page 11 of 15 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

 

involves the use of a firearm or other dangerous weapon, even if 

there is no injury.   

 

4) Reports to the California Department of Public Health (CDPH) 

 

a. The death or significant injury of a staff member resulting from a 

physical assault that occurs within or on the grounds of a facility is an 

adverse event that must be reported to CDPH no later than five days after 

the adverse event has been detected.  If the event is an ongoing urgent or 

emergent threat to the welfare, health or safety of patients, personnel or 

visitors, the report must be made not later than 24 hours after the adverse 

event has been detected.   

 

 

6. Telephone reports to Cal/OSHA 

 

The Cal/OSHA WVP regulations states that employers must continue to report 

immediately by telephone to the nearest District Office of the Division of Occupational 

Safety & Health any serious work-connected injury, illness or death as required by Title 

8, California Code of Regulations, Section 342(a). 

 

A.  Local District Office: 

 

Fresno District Office 

2550 Mariposa St. Room 4000 

Fresno, CA. 93721 

Telephone: 559-445-5302 

 

B. Cal/OSHA does not accept telephone reporting in place of the online 

reporting noted in 3.a.b. The telephone reporting is a separate 

requirement for incidents involving death or serious work-connected 

injury. 

 

C. “Immediately” means as soon as practically possible, but no longer than 

8 hours after the hospital knows of the death or serious injury. In extreme 

exigent circumstances, the timeframe for reporting to Cal/OSHA may be 

extended up to 24 hours maximum. 

 

D. Information required when completing a telephone report: 

 

1. Time and date of accident/event 

2. Employer's name, address and telephone number 

3. Name and job title of the person reporting the accident 

4.  Address of accident/event site 

5. Name of person to contact at accident/event site 

6. Name and address of injured employee(s) 



 Environment of Care Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

WORKPLACE VIOLENCE PREVENTION PLAN 

SECTION:   

Security Management 

Page 12 of 15 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

 

7. Nature of injuries 

8. Location where injured employee(s) was/were taken for medical 

treatment 

9. List and identity of other law enforcement agencies present at the 

accident/event site 

10. Description of accident/event and whether the accident scene or 

instrumentality has been altered. 

 

B. VIOLENT INCIDENT LOG/RECORD KEEPING 

 
1. Records of workplace violence hazards identification, evaluation, and correction shall be 

created and maintained in accordance with Title 8, California Code of Regulations, 

Section 3203(b) & 5120(e)(1)(B). 

 
2. Training records shall be created and maintained for a minimum of 1 year. Per Title 8, 

California Code of Regulations, Section 3203(b). The records must include details with 

date of training, contents or summary of the training sessions, names and qualifications of 

persons conducting the training, and the names and job titles of all the persons attending 

the training sessions.  In addition, Title 22, California Code of Regulations, Section 

70214 states that orientation and competency validation must be documented in the 

employee’s file for the duration of their employment. 

 

3. Violent Incident Logs must be maintained for a minimum of five years, per Title 8, 

California Code of Regulations, Section 3342(h)(3). The Violent Incident Logs shall 

include: 

             1) The date, time, specific location and department of the incident. 

 

2) A detailed description of the incident. 

 

3) A classification of who committed the violence, including whether the perpetrator was a 

patient/client/customer, family/friend of a patient/client/customer, stranger with criminal intent, 

coworker, supervisor/manager, partner/spouse, parent/relative, or other perpetrator.  

 

4) A classification of circumstances at the time of the incident, including whether the employee 

was completing usual job duties, working in poorly lit areas, rushed, working during a low 

staffing level, in a high-crime area, isolated or alone, unable to get help or assistance, working in 

a community setting, working in an unfamiliar or new location, or other circumstances. 

 

5) A classification of where the incident occurred, including whether it was in a patient or client 

room, emergency room or urgent care, hallway, waiting room, rest room or bathroom, parking lot 

or other area outside the building, personal residence, break room, cafeteria, or other area. 

 

6) The type of incident, including whether it involved: 

 

a. Physical attack, including biting, choking, grabbing, hair pulling, kicking, punching, slapping, 

pushing, pulling, scratching or spitting;  



 Environment of Care Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

WORKPLACE VIOLENCE PREVENTION PLAN 

SECTION:   

Security Management 

Page 13 of 15 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

 

 

b. Attack with a weapon or object, including a knife, gun, or other object; 

c. Threat of physical force or threat of the use of a weapon or other object; 

 

d. Sexual assault or threat, including rape/attempted rape, physical display, or unwanted 

verbal/physical sexual contact; 

 

e. Animal attack; 

 

f. Other 

 

7) Consequences of the incident, including: 

 

a. Whether medical treatment was provided to the employee; 

 

b. Who, if anyone, provided necessary assistance to conclude the incident; 

 

c. Whether security was contacted and whether law enforcement was contacted;  

 

d. Amount of lost time from work, if any; and 

 

e. Actions taken to protect employees from continuing threat, if any. 

 

8) Information about the person completing the Log, including the person's name, job title, phone 

number, email address, and the date completed.  

4.  

 

5. All records required by this subsection shall be made available upon request to the Chief 

of the Division of Occupational Safety and Health or his/her representative (Cal/OSHA 

Investigators) for examination and copying. 

 

6. All records required by this section shall be made available to employees and their 

representatives, on request, for examination and copying (at no charge to the employee). 

 

C. VIOLENT INCIDENT INVESTIGATION 

 
A.  A post-incident response and investigation shall be completed for any employee, 

contractor, or other individuals that are covered by the WVPP, and have been involved in 

an act of violence or threat of violence. Steps that shall be taken in the event of an 

incident of violence (include, but not limited to): 

 

1. Provide immediate medical care or first aid to employees or covered individuals 

who have been injured in the incident; 

 

2.  Identify all employees involved in the incident. 

 



 Environment of Care Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

WORKPLACE VIOLENCE PREVENTION PLAN 

SECTION:   

Security Management 

Page 14 of 15 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

 

3.  Making available individual trauma counseling to all employees affected by the incident. 

 

4. Reviewing any patient-specific risk factors and any risk reduction measure that were 

specified for that patient. 

 

5. Reviewing whether appropriate corrective measures developed under the Workplace 

Violence Prevention Plan were – such as adequate staffing, provisions and use of alarms 

or other means of summoning assistance, and response by staff or law enforcement were 

effectively implemented.  

 

7. Soliciting from the injured employee and other personnel involved in the incident their opinions 

regarding the cause of the incident, and whether any measure would have prevented the injury. 

8. Conduct a post-incident debriefing as soon as possible after the incident with all 

employees, supervisors, and security involved in the incident. 

 

9. Completion of the Workplace Violent Incident Report form. 

 

4. The Security Department will conduct a Security Incident Report for any 

incidents that cause injury or have a high probability of causing injury, 

psychological trauma or stress. 

 

5. All violent incidents will be reviewed through the Environmental Safety 

Committee and reported to Senior Leadership, and finally up to the Board of 

Directors (annually). 

 

D. ANNUAL REVIEW OF THE WVPP 

 
A.  An annual review of the WVPP must be completed at the end of each fiscal year. The 

goal of the annual evaluation is to evaluate the effectiveness of the plan and any actions 

implemented throughout the plan year. The annual review of the WVPP shall include: 

 

1. Staffing, including staffing patterns and patient classification systems that 

contribute to, or are insufficient to address, the risk of violence; 

 

2. Sufficiency of security systems, including alarms, emergency response, and 

security personnel availability; 

 

3. Job design, equipment, and facilities; 

 

4. Security risk associated with specific units, areas of the facility with uncontrolled 

access, late-night or early morning shifts, and employee security in areas 

surrounding the facility such as employee parking areas and other outdoor areas; 

 

5. Review of the Violent Incident Log. 

 

6. Additional limited review may be required following new procedures, processes 



 Environment of Care Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

WORKPLACE VIOLENCE PREVENTION PLAN 

SECTION:   

Security Management 

Page 15 of 15 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

 

or information. An updated review of the plan shall be completed whenever 

necessary, as follows: 

 

▪ To reflect new or modified tasks and procedures, changes in staffing, 

engineering controls, construction or modifications of the facilities, 

evacuation procedures, alarm systems and emergency responses; 

 

▪ To include newly recognized workplace violence hazards; 

 

▪ To review and evaluate workplace violence incidents that result in a serious 

injury or fatality; or 

 

▪ To review and respond to information indicating that the WVPP is deficient 

in any area. 
 

REFERENCES: 

 

• The Joint Commission (20254). Hospital accreditation standards. EC.02.01.01, EC.04.01.01, 

HR.01.05.03, LD.03.01.01 Joint Commission Resources. Oak Brook, IL.  

 

• Cal/OSHA Workplace Violence Prevention in Healthcare (2019). 

 

• Title 8, California Code of Regulations, Section 3203(b); 5120(e)(1)(B); 3342(h)(3). (2019) Retrieved 

from https://www.dir.ca.gov/samples/search/query.htm.  
 

• Title 22, California Code of Regulations, Section 70214 (2019). Retrieved from 

https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=I

D7365A90D4BB11DE8879F88E8B0DAAAE&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionTyp

e=Default&contextData=(sc.Default)&bhcp=1.  

 

• California Hospital Association. (January 2017). Healthcare Workplace Violence Prevention: How to 

comply with the Cal/OSHA regulations. Retrieved from 

https://www.calhospital.org/sites/main/files/file-

attachments/workplaceviolenceprevention_preview_0.pdf.  

 

CROSS REFERENCES: 

 

• SECURITY MANAGEMENT PLAN  

• INJURY AND ILLNESS PREVENTION PROGRAM  

 

 

https://www.dir.ca.gov/samples/search/query.htm
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=ID7365A90D4BB11DE8879F88E8B0DAAAE&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=Default&contextData=(sc.Default)&bhcp=1
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=ID7365A90D4BB11DE8879F88E8B0DAAAE&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=Default&contextData=(sc.Default)&bhcp=1
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=ID7365A90D4BB11DE8879F88E8B0DAAAE&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=Default&contextData=(sc.Default)&bhcp=1
https://www.calhospital.org/sites/main/files/file-attachments/workplaceviolenceprevention_preview_0.pdf
https://www.calhospital.org/sites/main/files/file-attachments/workplaceviolenceprevention_preview_0.pdf
https://powerdms.com/link/sierraview/document/?id=1578291
https://powerdms.com/link/sierraview/document/?id=1579318


 
     

            POLICIES APPROVED BY THE MEDICAL EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

            AGENDA
             CONSENT

























































































































































MEETING
MINUTES

MINUTES FROM PREVIOUS MEETING SUBMITTED FOR APPROVAL



 

  1 
 

MEETING MINUTES 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING 
SIERRA VIEW LOCAL HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 

 
The monthly October 28, 2025 at 5:00 P.M. in the Sierra View Medical Center Board Room,  
465 West Putnam Avenue, Porterville, California  
 

Call to Order: Chairman Lomeli called the meeting to order at 5:01 p.m. 
 

 Board Attendance:  
 Liberty Lomeli, Chair  - Present 
 Bindusagar Reddy, Vice Chair  - Arrived at 5:05 
 Areli Martinez, Secretary – Present 
 Hans Kashyap, Director – Present 
 Zone 2 Vacant 

   
 Others Present: Donna Hefner, President/Chief Executive Officer, Craig McDonald, 

Chief Financial Officer, Ron Wheaton, Vice President of Professional Services & 
Physician Recruitment, Melissa Crippen, Vice President of Quality and Regulatory Affairs, 
Tracy Canales, Vice President of Human Resources & Marketing, Brandy Irwin, Chief 
Nursing Officer, Kim Pryor-DeShazo, Director of Marketing, Silvia Roberts, Director of 
Care Integration,  Jennifer Regalado, Compliance Privacy Manager, Alex Reed-Krase, 
Legal Counsel, Harpreet Sandhu, Chief of Staff, Martha A. Flores, Dawn Bennett and 
Charles Whisnand. 

 
I. Approval of Agenda:   

 
Chair LOMELI inquired if there was a motion to approve the agenda. Director 
MARTINEZ moved to approve the agenda, the motion was seconded by Director 
KASHYAP.  The motion was carried with the following vote:  
 
KASHYAP  Yes 
MARTINEZ Yes 
REDDY Absent 
LOMELI Yes 

 
II. Closed Session: Board adjourned Open Session and went into Closed Session at 5:02 p.m. 

to discuss the following items: 
 

A. Pursuant to Evidence Code Section 1156 and 1157.7; Health and Safety Code Section 
32106(b):  Chief of Staff Report  

 
1. Evaluation – Quality of Care/Peer Review/Credentials  

 
B. Pursuant to Evidence Code Sections 1156 and 1157.7; Health and Safety Code Section 

32106(b): Quality Division Update 



Board of Directors – Minutes 
October 28, 2025 
 

2 
 

Vice Chair Reddy arrived to the meeting at 5:05pm 
 

C. Pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54962; Health and Safety Code Section 32106(c):  
Discussion Regarding Trade Secrets Pertaining to Financial Audit and Strategic Planning 
(1 Item). Estimated date of disclosure October 29, 2025.  
 

D. Pursuant To Gov. Code Section 54956.9(D)(2), Conference With Legal Counsel About 
Recent Work Product (B)(1) And (B)(3)(F):  Significant Exposure To Litigation; 
Privileged Communication (1 Items).  
 

E. Pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54956.9(d)(2), Significant Exposure to Litigation; 
Anticipated Litigation; BETA Claim 25-001937: Conference with Legal Counsel; (1 
Item). Estimated Disclosure: 3 years after completion of matter.  
 

F. Pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54962; Health and Safety Code Section 32106(c):  
Discussion Regarding Trade Secrets Pertaining to Services and Strategic Planning 
concerning new service line (1 Item). Estimated date of disclosure July 1, 2027.  
 

G. Pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54962; Health and Safety Code Section 32106(c):  
Discussion Regarding Trade Secrets Pertaining to Services and Strategic Planning. 
Estimated date of disclosure September 1, 2026.   
 

H. Pursuant To Gov. Code Section 54956.9(D)(2), Conference With Legal Counsel About 
Recent Work Product (B)(1) And (B)(3)(F):  Significant Exposure To Litigation; 
Privileged Communication (1 Items).  
 

III. Open Session: Chair LOMELI adjourned Closed Session at 5:32 p.m., reconvening in Open 
Session at 5:33 p.m.  
 
Pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54957.1; Action(s) taken as a result of discussion(s) in 
Closed Session.  
    

A. Chief of Staff Report 
 

 Information Only; No Action Taken. 
 
Pursuant to Evidence Code Section 1156 and 1157.7: 

 
1. Evaluation – Quality of Care/Peer Review/Credentials 

 
Following review and discussion, Director MARTINEZ made a motion to 
approve the Quality of Care/Peer Review/Credentials as presented. The 
motion was seconded by Director Kashyap. The motion was carried with 
the following vote by the Board:   

 
KASHYAP  Yes 
MARTINEZ Yes 



Board of Directors – Minutes 
October 28, 2025 
 

3 
 

REDDY Abstain 
LOMELI Yes 
 

B. Quality Division Update 
 
Pursuant to Evidence Code Section 1156 and 1157.7: 

 
2. Quality Division Update 

 
Following review and discussion, Vice Chair REDDY made a motion to 
approve the Quality Division Update as presented. The motion was 
seconded by Director MARTINEZ. The motion was carried with the 
following vote by the Board:  

 
KASHYAP  Yes 
MARTINEZ Yes 
REDDY Yes 
LOMELI Yes 
 

C. Discussion Regarding Trade Secrets Pertaining to Financial Audit 
Information Only; No Action Taken. 

 
D. Conference with Legal Counsel 

 Information Only; No Action Taken. 
 

E. Discussion of Significant Exposure to Litigation; Anticipated Litigation BETA Claim 25-
001937 

 
Following review and discussion, Vice Chair REDDY made a motion to reject 
BETA Claim 25-001937 as presented. The motion was seconded by Director 
MARTINEZ. The motion was carried with the following vote by the Board:  
 
KASHYAP  Yes 
MARTINEZ Yes 
REDDY Yes 
LOMELI Yes 

  
F. Discussion Regarding Trade Secrets Pertaining to New Service Line 
  Information Only: No Action Taken 

 
G. Conference with Legal Counsel 

Information Only; No Action Taken 
 

IV. Public Comments 
 
Letter from Patricia P. Dowling was given to the Board for review regarding her positive 
patient experience.  



Board of Directors – Minutes 
October 28, 2025 
 

4 
 

 
V. Consent Agenda 

 
The Medical Staff Policies/Procedures/Protocols/Plans and Hospital 
Policies/Procedures/Protocols/Plans were presented for approval (Consent Agenda 
attached to the file copy of these Minutes).  Director KASHYAP pulled the following 
three policies for further clarification: Environmental Tours, Food Purchasing and 
Receiving and Food Service Emergency Plan.  Following review and discussion, it was 
moved by Director KASHYAP, seconded by Director MARTINEZ, and carried to 
approve the Consent Agenda with the exception of the three that were pulled.   The vote 
of the Board is as follows: 
 
KASHYAP  Yes 
MARTINEZ Yes 
REDDY Yes 
LOMELI Yes 
 

VI. Approval of Minutes:  
 

A. Following review and discussion, it was moved by Director MARTINEZ and 
seconded by Director KASHYAP to approve the September 23, 20205  Minutes of 
the Regular Board Meeting as presented. The motion carried and the vote of the 
Board is as follows: 

 
KASHYAP  Yes 
MARTINEZ Yes 
REDDY Yes 
LOMELI Yes 

 
VII. Business Items 

 
A. Single Audit Review 

 
A virtual presentation was given by Brian Conner, Bradyn Stowe and Justen Gomes 
of Moss Adams via Zoom.  
 
Following review and discussion, it was moved by Vice Chairman REDDY, 
seconded  by Director Kashyap and carried to approve single audit review as 
presented.  The vote of the Board is as follows: 

 
KASHYAP Yes 
MARTINEZ Yes 
REDDY Yes 
LOMELI Yes 
 

 

 



Board of Directors – Minutes 
October 28, 2025 
 

5 
 

B. September 2025 Financials 
 

Craig McDonald, CFO presented the Financials for September2025.  
   

Following review and discussion, it was moved by Vice Chairman REDDY, 
seconded by Director Kashyap and carried to approve the September Financials as 
presented.  The vote of the Board is as follows: 

 
KASHYAP Yes 
MARTINEZ Yes 
REDDY Yes 
LOMELI Yes 
 

C. Capital Budget Report Quarter 1 
 

Craig McDonald, CFO presented the Capital Budget Report for Quarter 1.  
   

Following review and discussion, it was moved by Vice Chairman REDDY, 
seconded by Director MARTINEZ and carried to approve the Capital Budget 
Report for Quarter 1 as presented.  The vote of the Board is as follows: 

 
KASHYAP Yes 
MARTINEZ Yes 
REDDY Yes 
LOMELI Yes 
 

D. Investment Report Quarter 1 
 

Craig McDonald, CFO presented the Investment Report for Quarter 1.  
   

Following review and discussion, it was moved by Vice Chairman REDDY, 
seconded by Director Kashyap and carried to approve the Investment Report for 
Quarter 1 as presented.  The vote of the Board is as follows: 

 
KASHYAP Yes 
MARTINEZ Yes 
REDDY Yes 
LOMELI Yes 
 

E. Resolution 10-28-2025/01 Free Standing Mental Health Hospital 
 

A resolution is needed as part of a requirement to submit an application for a 
Behavioral Health Continuum Infrastructure Program (BHCIP) grant. If awarded, 
grant money would go towards a free-standing psychiatric hospital, with outpatient 
clinic and urgent care.  

   



Board of Directors – Minutes 
October 28, 2025 
 

6 
 

Following review and discussion, it was moved by Vice Chairman REDDY, 
seconded by Director MARTINZ and carried to approve Resolution 10-28-2025/01 
as presented.  The vote of the Board is as follows: 

 
KASHYAP Yes 
MARTINEZ Yes 
REDDY Yes 
LOMELI Yes 
 

F. Vote to Appoint Director to Fill Vacancy for Zone 2. Review of Applications and 
Interview Applicants who are Present Prior to Vote 

 
Two applications were received by the Clerk of the Board for the Zone 2 vacancy. 
Both candidates were confirmed to reside within Zone 2, and each appeared in 
person for an interview with the Board. Martha A. Flores and Dawn Bennett were 
invited to join the Board at the conference table for the interview process. Board 
members took turns asking questions, focusing on topics such as current healthcare 
trends, relevant experience, and healthcare gaps within the community. 

   
Following review and discussion, each of the four Board members cast their vote 
for whom they felt was more qualified to fill the vacancy, the vote of the Board is 
as follows: 

 
KASHYAP Martha A. Flores 
MARTINEZ Martha A. Flores 
REDDY Martha A. Flores 
LOMELI Abstain 
 

G. Administer Oath of Office to Director Appointed to Fill Zone 2 
 

Oath of office was administered to Martha A. Flores by CEO, Donna Hefner and 
Chairman Liberty Lomeli.  

   
VIII. SVLHCD Board Chair Report 

No Report was Given  
 

IX. CEO Report 
 
Donna Hefner, President/CEO provided a report of current activities and legislative report 
that impact Sierra View Medical Center.  
 

IX.  Announcements:  
A. Regular Board of Directors Meeting – November 25, 2025 at 5:00 p.m. 

 
XII.  Adjournment 

 
The meeting was adjourned at 7:33 p.m. 



Board of Directors – Minutes 
October 28, 2025 
 

7 
 

 
Respectfully submitted,  
 
 
 
Areli Martinez 
Secretary  
SVLHCD Board of Directors 
 
AM: trv 



FINANCIALS
FINANCIAL REPORTS FROM THE PREVIOUS MONTH



FINANCIAL PACKAGE
Oct-25

SIERRA VIEW MEDICAL CENTER

BOARD PACKAGE

Pages
Statistics 1-2
Balance Sheet 3-4
Income Statement 5
Statement of Cash Flow 6
Monthly Cash Receipts 7



Increase/
Over/ Over/ Fiscal 25 (Decrease)

  Statistic Actual Budget (Under) % Var. Actual Budget (Under) % Var. YTD Oct-24 % Change
Utilization

SNF Patient Days
Total 31               -               31                 0.0% 88                       -               88                 0.0% 116               (28)                  -24.1%

Medi-Cal 31               -               31                 0.0% 88                       -               88                 0.0% 116               (28)                  -24.1%

Sub-Acute Patient Days
Total 1,011          1,073           (62)                -5.8% 4,112                  4,261            (149)              -3.5% 4,071            41                    1.0%

Medi-Cal 458             538              (80)                -14.9% 1,850                  2,205            (355)              -16.1% 2,107            (257)                -12.2%

Acute Patient Days 1,599          1,746           (147)              -8.4% 6,410                  6,688            (278)              -4.2% 6,308            102                  1.6%
Acute Discharges 440             463              (23)                -5.0% 1,840                  1,773            67                 3.8% 1,773            67                    3.8%

 Medicare 151             177              (26)                -14.7% 652                     693               (41)                -5.9% 693               (41)                  -5.9%
Medi-Cal 230             225              5                   2.2% 933                     850               83                 9.8% 850               83                    9.8%
Contract 56               60                (4)                  -6.7% 241                     217               24                 11.1% 217               24                    11.1%

Other 3                 1                  2                   200.0% 14                       13                1                   7.7% 13                 1                     7.7%

Average Length of Stay 3.63            3.77             (0.14)             -3.7% 3.48                    3.77              (0.29)             -7.6% 3.56              (0.07)               -2.1%

Newborn Patient Days
Medi-Cal 156             177              (21)                -11.8% 651                     652               (1)                  -0.1% 639               12                    1.9%

Other 40               34                6                   17.1% 166                     137               29                 20.8% 150               16                    10.7%
Total 196             211              (15)                -7.1% 817                     789               28                 3.5% 789               28                    3.5%

Total Deliveries 111             107              4                   3.7% 455                     401               54                 13.5% 403               52                    12.9%
Medi-Cal % 79.28% 83.43% -4.15% -5.0% 78.85% 83.43% -4.58% -5.5% 82.18% -3.32% -4.0%

Case Mix Index
Medicare 1.6838         1.6368         0.0470          2.9% 1.6187 1.6368          (0.0181)         -1.1% 1.6051 0.0136             0.8%
Medi-Cal 0.9969         1.1975         (0.2006)         -16.8% 1.0181 1.1975          (0.1794)         -15.0% 1.1836 (0.1655)            -14.0%

Overall 1.2363         1.3724         (0.1361)         -9.9% 1.2836 1.3724          (0.0888)         -6.5% 1.3468 (0.0632)            -4.7%

Ancillary Services
Inpatient  

Surgery Minutes 9,116          7,863           1,253            15.9% 31,315                31,451          (136)              -0.4% 31,182          133                  0.4%
Surgery Cases 87               90                (3)                  -3.7% 355                     365               (10)                -2.9% 367               (12)                  -3.3%

Imaging Procedures 1,467          1,506           (39)                -2.6% 6,218                  6,023            195               3.2% 5,883            335                  5.7%

Outpatient
Surgery Minutes 15,461         14,118         1,343            9.5% 60,113                56,473          3,640            6.4% 54,848          5,265               9.6%

Surgery Cases 195             196              (1)                  -0.3% 771                     783               (12)                -1.5% 763               8                     1.0%
Endoscopy Procedures 216             187              29                 15.8% 795                     746               49                 6.5% 741               54                    7.3%

Imaging Procedures 4,564          4,194           370               8.8% 17,249                16,777          472               2.8% 16,522          727                  4.4%
MRI Procedures 349             304              45                 14.9% 1,309                  1,215            94                 7.8% 1,217            92                    7.6%
CT Procedures 1,566          1,262           304               24.1% 5,834                  5,047            787               15.6% 4,963            871                  17.5%

Ultrasound Procedures 1,679          1,360           319               23.5% 6,120                  5,438            682               12.5% 5,404            716                  13.2%
Lab Tests 35,958         32,307         3,651            11.3% 141,734              129,230        12,504          9.7% 127,276        14,458             11.4%

Dialysis 11               3                  8                   226.3% 26                       13                13                 92.8% 10                 16                    160.0%

Sierra View Medical Center
Financial Statistics Summary Report

October 2025

Oct-25 YTD



Increase/
Over/ Over/ Fiscal 25 (Decrease)

  Statistic Actual Budget (Under) % Var. Actual Budget (Under) % Var. YTD Oct-24 % Change

Sierra View Medical Center
Financial Statistics Summary Report

October 2025

Oct-25 YTD

Cancer Treatment Center
Chemo Treatments 2,009          2,014           (5)                  -0.2% 8,138                  8,055            83                 1.0% 8,614            (476)                -5.5%

Radiation Treatments 2,118          1,920           198               10.3% 7,213                  7,680            (467)              -6.1% 7,823            (610)                -7.8%
0.0%

Cardiac Cath Lab 0.0%
Cath Lab IP Procedures 14 14 0                   0.1% 59                       56                3                   5.4% 45                 14                    31.11%

Cath Lab OP Procedures 31 33 (2)                  -6.9% 127                     133               (6)                  -4.6% 142               (15)                  -10.56%
Total Cardiac Cath Lab 45 47 (2)                  -4.8% 186                     189               (3)                  -1.7% 187               (1)                    -0.53%

Outpatient Visits
Emergency 3,504          3,426           78                 2.3% 13,863                13,753          110               0.8% 13,740          123                  0.9%

Total Outpatient 15,768 14,313 1,455            10.2% 60,466                57,253          3,213            5.6% 56,854          3,612               6.4%

Staffing
Paid FTE's 871.82         900.16         (28.34)           -3.1% 885.09                900.16          (15.07)           -1.7% 873.07          12.02               1.4%

Productive FTE's 765.87         772.13         (6.26)             -0.8% 760.77                772.13          (11.36)           -1.5% 741.45          19.32               2.6%
Paid FTE's/AOB 4.93            5.11             (0.18)             -3.5% 5.02                    5.20              (0.18)             -3.5% 5.18              (0.16)               -3.1%

Revenue/Costs (w/o Case Mix)
Revenue/Adj.Patient Day 11,364         10,887.84    477               4.4% 11,249                11,106          143               1.3% 11,212          37                    0.3%

Cost/Adj.Patient Day 2,819          2,823           (5)                  -0.2% 2,879                  2,870            8                   0.3% 2,740.00       139                  5.1%

      
Revenue/Adj. Discharge 54,370         53,683         687               1.3% 51,709                55,236          (3,527)           -6.4% 52,832          (1,123)             -2.1%

Cost/Adj. Discharge 13,485         13,921         (436)              -3.1% 13,233                14,276          (1,043)           -7.3% 12,912          322                  2.5%
Adj. Discharge 1,145          1,107           38                 3.4% 4,715                  4,278            437               10.2% 4,397            319                  7.2%

Net Op. Gain/(Loss) % 0.84% -1.15% 2.00% -173.0% 1.92% -1.15% 3.07% -266.0% -2.43% 4.35% -178.8%
Net Op. Gain/(Loss) $ 131,204       (175,856)      307,060        -174.6% 1,219,155           (756,201)       1,975,356     -261.2% (1,346,967)    2,566,122        -190.5%

Gross Days in Accts Rec. 99.76          95.03           4.74              5.0% 99.76                  95.03            4.74              5.0% 84.65            15.11               17.9%
Net Days in Accts. Rec. 45.02          57.75           (12.73)           -22.0% 45.02                  57.75            (12.73)           -22.0% 43.91            1.11                 2.5%



Oct-25 Sep-25

Assets
Current Assets:
Cash & Cash Equivalents 16,318,806           11,714,050           
Short-Term Investments -                        -                        
Assets Limited As To Use 2,499,722             2,017,463             

Patient Accounts Receivable 198,102,457         195,832,362         
Less Uncollectables (12,858,367)          (13,870,339)          
Contractual Allowances (162,568,816)        (158,344,409)        

Other Receivables 26,004,867           29,237,801           
Inventories 4,509,502             4,488,101             
Prepaid Expenses and Deposits 3,125,921             2,842,153             
Less Receivable - Current 301,020                301,020                

Total Current Assets 75,435,113           74,218,204           

Assets Limited as to use, Less
Current Requirements 32,457,422           32,375,105           
Long-Term Investments 141,252,321         140,787,029         
Property, Plant and Equipment, Net 71,088,250           69,965,032           
Intangible Right of use Assets 230,946                243,006                
SBITA Right of use Assets 2,776,487             2,925,915             
Lease Receivable - LT 607,682                632,608                
Other Investments 250,000                250,000                
Prepaid Loss on Bonds 1,174,858             1,195,838             

Total Assets 325,273,080         322,592,737         

Liabilities and Funds Balances
Current Liabilities
Bond Interest Payable 405,883                304,412                
Current Maturities of Bonds Payable 4,235,000             4,235,000             
Current Maturities of Long Term Debt 599,282                684,544                
Account Payable and Accrued Expenses 7,383,624             5,880,843             
Accrued Payroll and Related Costs 8,320,887             7,886,959             
Estimated Third-Party Payor Settlements 4,455,134             4,294,112             
Lease Liability - Current 130,871                132,614                
SBITA Liability - Current 1,474,274             1,476,328             
Total Current Liabilities 27,004,955           24,894,812           

Self-Insurance Reserves 2,114,815             2,130,222             
Capital Lease Liab LT 0                            0                            
Bonds Payable, Less Curr Reqt 29,040,000           29,040,000           
Bonds Premium Liability - LT 1,896,496             1,942,016             
Lease Liability - LT 122,581                133,200                
SBITA Liability - LT 1,771,472             1,890,110             
Other Non Current Liabilities -                        -                        
Deferred Inflow - Leases 848,042                872,539                

Total Liabilities 62,798,360           60,902,900           

Unresticted Fund 258,350,395         258,350,395         
Profit or (Loss) 4,124,324             3,339,442             

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance 325,273,080         322,592,737         

-                        -                        

Sierra View Local Health Care District 
Balance Sheet



For Period Oct-25

 ACTUAL  BUDGET  VARIANCE % VARIANCE  ACTUAL YTD  BUDGET YTD  VARIANCE YTD % VARIANCE

Operating Revenue
Inpatient - Nursing 5,441,457            5,590,232            (148,775)            (3%) 21,850,145            21,374,029             476,116              2%
Inpatient - Ancillary 18,563,054          19,264,931          (701,877)            (4%) 73,630,114            76,559,027             (2,928,913)         (4%)
Total Inpatient Revenue 24,004,511          24,855,163          (850,652)            (3%) 95,480,259            97,933,056             (2,452,797)         (3%)

Outpatient - Ancillary 38,252,696          34,570,726          3,681,970          11% 148,339,600          138,385,192           9,954,408           7%
Total Patient Revenue 62,257,208          59,425,889          2,831,319          5% 243,819,859          236,318,248           7,501,611           3%

Medicare (18,743,979)        (19,568,846)         824,867             (4%) (72,378,187)           (77,807,294)            5,429,107           (7%)
Medi-Cal (21,062,121)        (18,297,729)         (2,764,392)         15% (85,191,012)           (72,753,342)            (12,437,670)        17%
Other/Charity (7,611,427)          (6,958,496)           (652,931)            9% (22,917,086)           (27,759,950)            4,842,864           (17%)
Discounts & Allowances (149,679)             (18,597)                (131,082)            705% (394,334)                (73,956)                   (320,378)            433%
Bad Debts (39,957)               (237,704)              197,747             (83%) (2,364,759)             (945,273)                 (1,419,486)         150%
Total Deductions (47,607,161)        (45,081,372)         (2,525,789)         6% (183,245,378)         (179,339,815)          (3,905,563)         2%

Net Service Revenue 14,650,046          14,344,517          305,529             2% 60,574,481            56,978,433             3,596,048           6%
Other Operating Revenue 922,323               889,614               32,709               4% 3,043,878              3,343,731               (299,853)            (9%)
Total Operating Revenue 15,572,369          15,234,131          338,238             2% 63,618,359            60,322,164             3,296,195           5%

Salaries 6,100,785            6,139,344            38,559               1% 24,368,459            24,077,686             (290,773)            (1%)
S&W PTO 633,107               726,875               93,768               13% 2,666,404              2,852,332               185,928              7%
Employee Benefits 1,411,237            1,460,204            48,967               3% 5,879,215              5,840,816               (38,399)              (1%)
Professional Fees 1,539,428            1,905,782            366,354             19% 7,787,415              7,578,316               (209,099)            (3%)
Purchased Services 1,149,724            904,743               (244,981)            (27%) 3,846,818              3,634,406               (212,412)            (6%)
Supplies & Expenses 2,627,029            2,298,157            (328,872)            (14%) 9,718,270              9,174,361               (543,909)            (6%)
Maintenance & Repairs 312,587               303,754               (8,833)                (3%) 1,233,029              1,215,016               (18,013)              (1%)
Utilities 294,086               306,217               12,131               4% 1,445,656              1,224,868               (220,788)            (18%)
Rent/Lease 34,870                30,041                 (4,829)                (16%) 145,649                 120,164                  (25,485)              (21%)
Insurance 97,762                122,727               24,965               20% 475,394                 490,908                  15,514                3%
Depreciation/Amortization 806,420               811,079               4,659                 1% 3,270,257              3,244,316               (25,941)              (1%)
Other Expense 434,130               401,064               (33,066)              (8%) 1,562,638              1,625,176               62,538                4%
Impaired Costs -                      -                       -                    0% -                         -                         -                     0%
Total Operating Expense 15,441,165          15,409,987          (31,178)              (0%) 62,399,203            61,078,365             (1,320,838)         (2%)
Net Gain/(Loss) From Operations 131,205               (175,856)              307,061             (175%) 1,219,156              (756,201)                 1,975,357           (261%)

District Taxes 138,477               138,477               -                    0% 553,908                 553,908                  -                     0%
Investment Income 593,695               488,226               105,469             22% 2,088,379              1,952,904               135,475              7%
Other Non - Operating Income 28,005                40,308                 (12,303)              (31%) 114,206                 161,232                  (47,026)              (29%)
Interest Expense (71,194)               (70,649)                (545)                  (1%) (291,240)                (282,596)                 (8,644)                (3%)
Non-Operating Expense (63,252)               (39,853)                (23,399)              (59%) (168,543)                (159,413)                 (9,130)                (6%)
Total Non-Operating Income 625,730               556,509               69,221               12% 2,296,710              2,226,035               70,675                3%

-                    -                     
Gain/(Loss) Before Net Inc/(Decr) FV Invstmt 756,935               380,653               376,282             99% 3,515,866              1,469,834               2,046,032           139%
Net Incr/(Decr) in the Fair Value Invstmt 27,947                162,500               (134,553)            (83%) 608,458                 650,000                  (41,542)              (6%)
Net Gain/(Loss) 784,882               543,153               241,729             45% 4,124,324              2,119,834               2,004,490           95%

-                      

Sierra View Local Health Care District 
Income Statement 



Current Month YTD

Cash flows from operating activities:
Operating Income/(Loss) 131,205                      1,219,156         
Adjustments to reconcile operating income/(loss) to net cash from operating activities

Depreciation/Amortization 806,420                      3,270,257         
Provision for bad debts (1,011,972)                  (1,362,430)        

-                    
     Change in assets and liabilities: -                    

Patient accounts receivable, net 1,954,312                   (1,916,503)        
Other receivables 3,232,935                   (5,736,411)        
Inventories (21,401)                       (16,592)             
Prepaid expenses and deposits (283,768)                     (506,003)           
Advance refunding of bonds payable, net 20,980                        83,918              
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 1,502,781                   1,885,676         
Deferred inflows - leases (24,497)                       (97,988)             
Accrued payroll and related costs 433,928                      (874,548)           
Estimated third-party payor settlements 161,022                      46,421              
Self-insurance reserves (15,407)                       (14,274)             

Total adjustments 6,755,332                   (5,238,476)        

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 6,886,537                   (4,019,320)        

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
District tax revenues 138,477                      553,908            
Noncapital grants and contributions, net of other expenses (49,790)                       (118,442)           

               Net cash provided by (used in) noncapital financing activities 88,687                        435,466            

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Purchase of capital assets (1,917,577)                  (2,862,871)        
Proceeds from sale of assets -                              -                    
Proceeds from debt borrowings -                              -                    
Proceeds from lease receivable, net 24,926                        98,953              
Principal payments on debt borrowings -                              (4,235,000)        
Interest payments (701)                            (696,856)           
Issuance of bonds payable and bond premium liability -                              -                    
Net change in notes payable and lease liability (68,889)                       (271,983)           
Net changes in assets limited as to use (564,576)                     2,820,979         

Net cash provided by (used in) capital and related  financing activities (2,526,817)                  (5,146,778)        

Cash flows from investing activities:
Net (purchase) or sale of investments (437,345)                     (1,588,135)        
Investment income 593,695                      2,088,379         

               Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 156,350                      500,244            

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents: 4,604,756                   (8,230,390)        

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of month/year 11,714,050                 24,549,196       

Cash and cash equivalents at end of month 16,318,806                 16,318,806
16,318,806                 16,318,806

(0.00)                           (0.00)                 

SIERRA VIEW MEDICAL CENTER
Statement of Cash Flows

October-25

 6



SIERRA VIEW MEDICAL CENTER

MONTHLY CASH RECEIPTS
October 2025

PATIENT
 ACCOUNTS OTHER TOTAL
RECEIVABLE ACTIVITY DEPOSITED

Nov-24 11,872,571          1,402,779         13,275,350      
Dec-24 13,002,191          6,026,303         19,028,494      
Jan-25 12,353,155          4,293,154         16,646,309      
Feb-25 9,516,870            8,335,277         17,852,147      
Mar-25 13,111,820          451,259            13,563,079      
Apr-25 13,460,422          8,143,789         21,604,211      

May-25 12,344,513          9,292,615         21,637,128      
Jun-25 10,549,177          4,753,556         15,302,733      
Jul-25 13,219,919          932,239            14,152,158      

Aug-25 9,922,993            1,161,531         11,084,524      
Sep-25 12,323,268          233,998            12,557,266      
Oct-25 12,181,755          7,001,985         19,183,740      

NOTE:

Cash receipts in "Other Activity" include the following:

    - Other Operating Revenues - Receipts for Café, rebates, refunds,
      and miscellaneous funding sources 

    - Non-Operating Revenues - rental income, property tax revenues, sale of assets

    - Medi-Cal OP Supplemental and DSH Funds 
    - Medi-Cal and Medi-Care Tentative Cost Settlements 
    - Grants, IGT, HQAF, & QIP Supplemental Funds
    - Medicare interim payments 

October 2025 Summary of Other Activity:
34,555             Beta Healthcare Group Dividend 1st Installment 
16,010             Cal Viva DHDP FY23 Phase 2 

2,647,159        Health Net DHDP CY23 Phase 2 
90                    Health Net DHDP CY23 Phase 2 

554                  LA Care Healthplan DHDP CY23 Phase 2 
92                    Contra Costa County DHDP CY23 Phase 2

470,424           M-Cal IP DSH 07/25 - 09/25 
253,428           M-Care interim payments 

2,903,655        Anthem Blue Cross DHDP CY23 Phase 2 
30,919              M-Care Temporary Allowance Cost Report FY15 

160,103            M-Care Temporary Allowance Cost Report FY24
484,996            Miscellaneous

7,001,985        10/25 Total Other Activity

 7


	Consent Agenda - Approved by Senior Team
	Consent Agenda - Approved by MEC
	Minutes for Approval
	Financials

	PATIENTS LABEL_3: 
	By: 
	Time: 
	Date request filled: 
	PATIENTS LABEL_2: 
	Date_2: 
	patient: 
	undefined_8: 
	undefined_7: 
	Phone_2: 
	Printed Name: 
	Date: 
	Patient Name_2: 
	To: 
	From: 
	HIVAIDS Test Results: Off
	Genetic Testing Information: Off
	Drug and Alcohol Abuse Results: Off
	PATIENTS LABEL: 
	undefined_6: 
	Operative Reports: Off
	EEG: Off
	Progress Notes: Off
	Pathology Reports: Off
	Mental Health: Off
	EKG: Off
	Radiology CD: Off
	History  Physical Exams: Off
	Emergency Reports: Off
	Other: Off
	Radiology Reports: Off
	Laboratory Reports: Off
	Discharge Summary: Off
	Consultations: Off
	Billing Statements: Off
	State reason 2: 
	State reason 1: 
	Paper Copy: Off
	Email email will be encrypted: Off
	CD: Off
	Relationship to patient: 
	I authorize_2: 
	Email_2: 
	Fax Number: 
	Phone Number: 
	Zip Code_2: 
	State_2: 
	City_2: 
	Address_2: 
	Name of HospitalClinicPerson: 
	I authorize: 
	Email: 
	undefined_5: 
	undefined_4: 
	Phone: 
	undefined_3: 
	undefined_2: 
	Date of Birth: 
	Zip Code: 
	State: 
	City: 
	Address: 
	undefined: 
	Patient Name: 


